1: 32: 33 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 17, 2015
1:32 p. m

called the House Finance

nmeeting to order at 1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Mar k Neuman, Co-Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

Scott Kawasaki

Cat hy Munoz

Lance Pruitt

Tamm e W1 son

David Guttenberg

Committee

Jane Pierson, Chi ef of Staff, Representative Steve
Thonmpson; WIlliam G O Leary, President and CEO, Al aska
Rai |l road Corporation; Linda Leary, Board Chair, Board of

Directors, Alaska Railroad Corporation
Kel | er, Sponsor; Conmm ssioner M chael Hanl ey,
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent;

Representative Wes
Conmi ssi oner,

SUVVARY

HB 30 CONSTI TUTI ONAL HI STORY CURRI CULUM
HB 30 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

HB 140 LEG APPROVAL: AK RAI LROAD REVENUE BONDS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



HB 140 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for
further consideration.

#hb140
HOUSE BI LL NO. 140

"An Act authorizing the Al aska Railroad Corporation to
issue revenue bonds to finance a positive train
control rail transportation safety project t hat
qualifies for federal financial participation; and
providing for an effective date."

Co- Chair Thonpson revi ewed the neeting agenda and i ndicated
he woul d not be noving either of the scheduled bills out of
comittee.

1: 33: 51 PM

JANE Pl ERSQN, CH EF OF STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  STEVE
THOMPSON, introduced herself and told a personal story
about riding on the Alaska railroad from Seward to
Anchorage. She read the sponsor statenent:

HB 140 will authorize the Al aska Railroad Corporation
(ARRC) to issue up to $37 million in tax-exenpt bonds
backed by Federal Transit Adm nistration (FTA) fornula
funds received annually by ARRC. Bond proceeds wll be
used to finance Positive Train Control (PTC): a safety
program mandat ed by the federal governnment w thout any
correlating funding, which is estimated to cost ARRC
approxi mately $158 mllion.

ARRC proposes to refinance $66 mnmllion in existing
bonds and extend the repaynent date in order to issue
an additional $37 million in bonds to pay for a nmjor
portion of the remaining $55 nmillion in PTC costs.

Under AS.42.40.285 ARRC is required to receive
| egi slative approval to issue bonds. In no event wll
the general credit of the State of Al aska or ARRC be
pl edged for the repaynent of these bonds. AS. 42.40.500
requires that all liabilities incurred by ARRC shall
be satisfied “exclusively” from the assets or revenue
of ARRC and not the State.

Debt paynent for the bonds will come froma portion of
Federal Transit Admnistration (FTA) fornula funds

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



which are statutorily mandated by Federal |aw and
received annually by ARRC. Issuing debt backed by FTA
formula funds is authorized through FTA regul ati on and
has al ready been used by ARRC to issue bonds.

PTC is technology designed to stop or slow a train
before human-error causes an accident to occur. 1In
2008, the federal Rail Safety I|nprovenment Act required
certain railroads to install a fully functional PTC
system by the end of 2015; by virtue of its passenger
service, ARRC is subject to this requirenent. A
failure to inplenment PTC will force ARRC to severely
curtail or elimnate passenger service and/or face
severe fines for non-conpliance.

Estimates for this large research and devel opnent
project indicate that it will cost approximtely $158
mllion to inplement. Since 1997, ARRC has invested
$68.9 mllion to develop a PTC system 1In 2013 and
2014, ARRC received an additional $19.1 mllion and
$15 million respectively from the State of Al aska to
continue work on PTC. Between 2016 and 2018, an
additional $55 mllion will be required for ARRC to
conplete the developnent and installation of PTC by
2018. This figure does not include the estimted $5
mllion to $7 mllion per vyear of operating and
capital maintenance costs related to the system that
ARRC wi Il fund after PTC is installed.

She added that the bond issuance would | eave the additional
$18 mllion to conplete the project for the funding
package. She noted that if ARRC did not show that it was
making a good-faith effort to inplenment PTC, the Federal
Railroad Admi nistration could inplement fines up to $100
t housand per day. She concluded her introduction of the
bill and nmentioned that Bill O Leary, ARRC s President and
Chi ef Executive Oficer, and Linda Leary, ARRC s Board
Chair were in the audience available for questions. She
al so indicated Barbara Anmy, ARRC s Chief Financial Oficer
was online and avail abl e for questions.

1: 38: 37 PM

Co- Chai r Thonmpson relayed that Co- Chai r Neurman and
Representative Gattis had joined the neeting and asked if
any commttee nenbers had questi ons.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Vi ce- Chair Saddl er wondered if anyone had any ideas on how
to increase revenue to pay for the additional $5 mllion to
$7 mllion per year for the operational expense of the PTC
system

WLLIAM G O LEARY, PRESIDENT AND CEO ALASKA RAILROGAD
CORPCORATI ON, responded that the $5 million to $7 million
would be the ongoing costs to maintain the system once
installed. He anticipated taking the maintenance funding
from the railroad's operating and capital budgets. The
rail road had been in a series of flux with the drops in key
revenue streans including federal nonies. He thought that
funding woul d be a challenge starting in 2019.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked about how nuch gross revenue the
state received from passenger service.

M. O Leary estimated that the annual gross revenue for
passenger services was between $26 million to $27 mllion
He reported that passenger activity had grown over recent
years.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked M. O Leary if the cost of the PTC
was paid for through passenger fees. M. O Leary responded
in the negative. He signified that ARRC would be exploring
different revenue options. He opined that the railroad was
operating in a conpetitive market place and raising fees
could lead to nore conpetition. He assured the commttee
that ARRC woul d be reevaluating its entire fee structure.

1:41: 44 PM

Representative Gara commented that over the years the
rail road had not nade a consistent net revenue. He wondered
about the railroad' s net revenue in real estate operations,
for exanple, over the previous five years. M. O Leary
responded that the revenue bonds would not be a credit for
ARRC. He continued that the only supporting revenue stream
for the bonds would be the Federal Transit Adm nistration
(FTA) fornula nonies, federal nonies the railroad received
annually. He relayed that over the previous ten years ARRC
had received between $29 million to $36 mllion per year in
FTA funds. The funds came as a result of ARRC offering
year-round schedul ed passenger service. The corporation
itself had a net income of $11 million to $14 mllion over
the previous five years.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Representative (Gara asked if M. O Leary had full
confidence that the railroad would be able to repay the
revenue bonds.

M. O Leary responded that since the credit of the railroad
woul d not be supporting the bonds, the only revenue that
would be applied were FTA nonies. He furthered that FTA
funds were up for reauthorization in congress as part of
the national transportation reauthorization. He explained
that the funding that ARRC received was part of fornula
nmoni es that supported nmany other passenger train lines all
over the country. He expressed his confidence in the funds
continuing into the future. Oherwi se, he surmsed there
woul d be too great an inpact on the popul ous of the states.

Representative Gara commented that the bill seenmed fine. He
expressed concern that the railroad would conme back to the
state for funds to pay for the bonds in the future. For
example, if ARRC received $30 million in federal funds but
began to lose nore than that as a railroad operation, he
wondered if ARRC would cone to the state for additional
funds. He wanted to know whether M. O Leary was confident
that ARRC had enough internal revenue to avoid comng to
the state for help with the bond repaynent.

M. O Leary responded, "Yes." He explained that the bond
indenture was witten such that the bond holders' debt
service paynents were nade before the federal revenue could
be used for any other purpose.

Representative Gara suggested that ARRC had been naking
approximately $11 million to $14 nillion in net revenue. He
wondered if it included the $29 nmillion to $36 mllion from
the federal governnent. Oherw se, he surmsed ARRC was
| osi ng noney.

M. O Leary responded positively that the net revenue
included the federal funds. However, the nonies that cane
in did not flow into net inconme. The funds were used for
capital activities. He continued that the FTA funds were
used for debt service first and then for <capita
activities.

1:46:17 PM

Representative Gara wanted to confirm that ARRC would be
revenue positive even without FTA funding. He asked that if

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



ARRC was using the FTA noney for capital expenses and the
funds were now pledged to pay for the revenue bond, was
there any foreseeable circunstance in which ARRC woul d have
to come to the state for additional noney. He wondered if
ARRC woul d al ways have a positive net revenue.

M. OLlLeary stated that in his view there would be
sufficient revenue and that ARRC would not be coming to the
state for any kind of operating subsidy.

Representative WIson asked about funding for the previous
two years.

M. O Leary responded that in the past two years ARRC had
received state general fund (GF) nonies totaling $34
mllion. Prior to that, since 1997, AARC used federal
nmoni es including ear marks and fornula funds, and revenue
generated frominternal railroad operations.

Representative WIson asked why ARRC was not asking for GCF
noni es.

M. OlLeary replied that ARRC started out |ooking for GF
nmoni es, but was quickly disabused of the notion. Al aska
Rai |l road Corporation (ARRC) was challenged by nenbers of
the [Finance] conmittee to think creatively about how to
nove the project forward without $55 million in G- funding.

Representative Wl son thanked M. O Leary for his efforts.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked if other states had used their FTA
revenue stream to pay for PTC. He wondered if Alaska's
approach had been used previously.

M. O Leary confirmed that the approach had been used in
other states. He furthered that ARRC had used the approach
in 2006 when the railroad issued its first bonds.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked how it had worked for the state in
t he past and for other railroads.

M. O Leary believed that it had worked well for ARRC and
for other railroads to |everage FTA funds. The funds were
consistent, comng from FTA, and provided the opportunity
to finish projects that would have otherw se taken nuch
| onger to conpl ete.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Vi ce- Chair Saddl er asked about the federal funding stream
He wondered if it stemred froma freight surcharge or if it
was a full faith in credit with the federal governnent. M.
O Leary relayed that the nonies canme from the nmass transit
account in the highway trust fund.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked how the highway trust fund was
fueled. M. O Leary responded that the fund was augnented
by a federal gas tax.

Representati ve Kawasaki suggest ed t hat in previ ous
committee neetings with Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities it was reported that the federal highway
trust fund was shrinking. He wondered how ARRC would be
af f ect ed.

M. OLeary indicated that there was risk in the federa

reaut hori zati on concerning how the highway trust fund would
be funded and at what |evels. However, congress was
investigating different approaches alternate to a flat gas
tax. He noted the possibility of a mleage-based approach

Al aska Railroad Corporation believed the outflows from the
federal government would continue in a simlar form

Co- Chair Thonpson signified that his understandi ng was that
the bond holders were aware of the risk of FTA dollars
goi ng away.

M. O Leary responded affirmatively. He reported that there
were very explicit disclosures on all of the bond-offering
docunents that showed there was no pledge of full faith in
credit of the state, nor of ARRC, but rather the only
security for the bonds was the fornula noney that ARRC
received from FTA

1: 51: 00 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if the timng was critical for ARRC
to secure the bonds in the current year.

M. OLlLeary responded that the timng was extrenely
critical. The railroad was not quite |iving hand-to-nouth
on the project but explained that ARRC would need to have
an infusion of cash by June 2015 or July 2015.

Vice-Chair Saddl er wonder about t he i nt erest rate
associated with the bonds. M. O Leary reported that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



nodel i ng ARRC was doing with a financial advisor was based
on an interest rate below 2.5 percent.

Co- Chair Thonmpson commented that if the state waited a year
the interest rate could junp to 5 percent or 7 percent. He
added that an interest rate of 2.5 percent was a good rate.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked about what would happened if ARRC
did not receive authority from the legislature in the
current year.

M. OLeary stated that ARRC would have a significant
problem He elaborated that the railroad would not be able
to enter into any further contracts or spend additional
funds which would result in the project comng to a
conplete halt. Alaska Railroad Corporation would not be
acting in good faith in the eyes of the Federal Railroad
Adm nistration, the railroad regulator. The consequences of
not inplenmenting PTC within the designated tineline could
lead to fines of up to $100 thousand per day and eventually
the inability to provide passenger service. He noted that
not only would ARRC lose $26 nmllion to $27 nillion in
gross revenues for passenger service, ARRC would no | onger
be eligible to receive FTA funding. There would be a very
different nodel for ARRC going forward. He referred to it
as a, "death spiral."

Vi ce-Chair Saddler followed up by asking if it was possible
that the Federal Railroad Adm nistration would issue
wai vers for the PTC requirenent.

M. O Leary responded in the negative. He relayed that he
had recently been in Washington D.C. the prior week to neet
with Alaska's congressional delegation and wth federal
regulators. He cited that the consistent nessage from al
parties was that there was no way for ARRC to get out of
neeting the PTC requirenent.

HB 140 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Thonpson relayed a personal story about M.
O Leary's nom

Representative Gara interjected that he knew that Linda
Leary was a good fisherman.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



LI NDA LEARY, BOARD CHAIR, BOARD OF DI RECTORS, ALASKA
RAI LROAD CORPORATI ON, thanked the conmittee for hearing HB
140 and admtted to loving to fish.

Co- Chair Thonpson acknowl edged Sharon Kelly from the
Speaker's office and wshed her a happy birthday. He
foll owed by bringing up the next agenda item HB 30.

1:56: 12 PM

#hb30
HOUSE BI LL NO. 30

"An Act requiring school districts to develop and
require conpl eti on of a hi story of Aneri can
constitutionalism curriculum segnent; and providing
for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, SPONSOR, began by reading from
t he sponsor statenent:

CS for House Bill 30 wll require the Alaska's
Depart ment of Education and/or organized school
districts to inplenment curriculum segnents wthin
civic or history courses centering on 15 years of
Anmerican H story critical to the creation of our

country. The program will concentrate on the docunents
that so nmany people have lived and died for over the
past 239 years. Included in the course work will be an

understanding of the Declaration of Independence,
first state constitutions, Articles of Confederation
and the U S. Constitution.

Representati ve Kel | er pr oposed t hat Aneri can
constitutionalism was a beacon. He read from HB 30
begi nning on page 1, |ine 14:

(2) Aneri can constitutionalism represents this
country's greatest gift to human freedom its ideals,
ideas, and institutions have influenced different
people in different lands at different tines.

Representative Kelly suggested that it was best illustrated
with a story. He relayed that approximately 90 to 100 years
after the constitution was passed the French had warm
feelings towards Anerica. He opined that America would not
be a nation w thout the French having hel ped wth noney and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



troops. He continued to explain that the French Anmerican

founders were dead after 90 years and nost likely only
their grandchildren were alive. He relayed that at the tine
France was under the nonarchy of Napoleon 111, who was

known to be oppressive. The French came up with the idea of
building Anericans a statue, the Statue of Liberty. The
official title of the Statue of Liberty was, "The Liberty
and Lighting of the Wrld." Sonme of the influential people
in France wanted to install a marker to rem nd them of what
was happening in the world. He conveyed that the French
were inpressed wth what Americans took for granted;
i nalienable rights of human beings such as life, liberty,
and the pursuit of happiness. The Statue of Liberty was
given to the U S. by the French as a remnder to the world
about Anerican freedons. He renmarked that there was an
i npressive amount of synbolism in the statue including the
torch and the crown on the woman's head with seven points
representing the seven continents and the seven seas. He
reiterated that the statue was a beacon to mankind of what
had been enshrined in the great country of Anmerica. He
pointed out the tablet tucked under the woman's arm and
explained that it was a synbol of the rule of Iaw rather
than of a nonarch. He reiterated that Americans took some
things for granted. There were broken chains at the feet of
the Statue of Liberty representing the consequences of the
values of the U 'S Constitution resulting in enslavenent.
He provided another interesting fact that July 4, 1776, the
date of the Declaration of I|ndependence, was |isted on the
tablet. He stressed the docunent's profoundness as it
related to America's constitutionalism

Representative Keller informed the commttee that HB 30 was
an unfunded nmandate. In his estimation it was a soft
mandat e because hi gh stakes were not invol ved.

2:02: 25 PM

Representative Keller read from a letter of support from
the Mat-Su School District to the commttee:

The Mat-Su Borough School District would like to offer
support for HB 30, Constitutional H story. It enbeds
the teaching of the Constitution and the teaching of
the original docunents that helped our country and
governing system in our required civics course. W
concur with the inportance of this.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Keller reported that the school district
al so spoke against a mandated test which he confirmed was
not part of the curriculum requirenment in HB 30. He
continued to explain that the bill was an unfunded nandate
and suggested that many school districts were already
teaching the curriculum He voiced that all schools should
be teaching Anerican constitutionalism as the curriculum
covered fundanental issues to the US. He was concerned
W th peopl e forgetting t he country's hi story. He
communi cated that when he reread the history of the Statue
of Liberty he realized how nmuch he had taken for granted.
He appreciated the reinforcenent that cane from review ng
the history. He indicated he was open to questions fromthe
comm ttee.

Co-Chair Thonpson read from page 19 of the Al aska
St andards: Content and Perfornmance Standards for Al aska
St udent s:

A student who neets the content standard shoul d:

1) understand the ideals of this nation as expressed
in the Declaration of I|ndependence, the United States
Constitution, and the Bill of Rights;

2) recognize Anmerican heritage and culture, including
the republican form of governnent, capitalism free
enterprise system patriotism strong famly wunits,
and freedom of religion;

3) under st and t he United St at es Constitution,
including separation of power s, the executive,
| egislative, and judicial branches of governnent,
majority rule, and mnority rights;

4) know how power is shared in the United States’
constitutional governnent at the federal, state, and
| ocal |evels;

5) wunderstand the inportance of individuals, public
opinion, media, political parties, associations, and
groups in formng and carrying out public policy;

6) recognize the significance of diversity in the
American political system

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



7) distinguish between constitution-based ideals and
the reality of American political and social life;

8) wunderstand the place of law in the Anmerican
political system and

9) recognize the role of dissent in the American
political system

Co- Chai r Thonpson asked if the bill was creating
duplication or adding to the list of the already
est abl i shed standards.

Representative Keller responded that from his perspective
he wanted an additional history requirenment. He crafted the
bill such that the curriculum was a segnment that could be
inserted where appropriate such as in a civics course. He
claimed that his legislation added enphasis to the
est abl i shed standards. He was uncl ear about the details of
how wel | the standards were fulfilled.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked Commi ssioner Hanley if the bill was
duplicative and whether schools were abiding by the current
Al aska Content Standards.

2:06:25 PM

COW SSI ONER M CHAEL HANLEY, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, confirmed that the
standards in Representative Keller's bill were in the
Al aska Content Standards. He comented that the bill
clarified a couple of conponents that were inplied in the
st andards but were pointedly enphasized in HB 30.

Co- Chair Thonmpson asked Comm ssioner Hanley if the bill
would result in additional npnies and costs to the school
districts.

Comm ssi oner Hanley pointed out t hat there was a
responsibility to the state's school districts in that the
chief adm nistrator of each school would have to devel op
and submt a syllabus to the governing body. He explained
that it was not a separate course, but a curricul um segnent
that would be incorporated into a course. He believed that
many of the school districts were already teaching the
segnent content in their current curriculum However, he

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



clained there would be sone schools that would need to neke
sonme additions and changes.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked if the comm ssioner felt that the
Al aska Content Standards al ready covered the content.

Comm ssi oner Hanley indicated that there could be
duplicity. However, he noted that the foundational
docunents specified in the  Dbill were not directly

represented in the Al aska Content Standards. House Bill 30
woul d bring greater focus on particul ar conponents.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the comm ssioner saw the
requirenents of the bill as teaching the U S Constitution
or constitutionalism

Comm ssioner Hanley wondered if Vice-Chair Saddler was
asking for his interpretation of the sponsor's bill.

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er responded affirmatively.

Representative Keller explained that the reason "isnf was
included in the bill was because his intent was to
i ncorporate the values around the U S. Constitution. He was
concerned with including the values that were in the mnds
and hearts of the American founders. He clainmed that
| ooking at the values was inportant and distinctive to HB
30.

Representative Keller wanted to nmeke a clarification. He
relayed that he had said previously that his school
district supported the bill based on a letter of support
from M. CGene St one, Assi st ant Superi nt endent of
I nstruction for the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough School
District. However, M. Stone was not necessarily speaking
on behalf of the school district. He wanted to stress the
poi nt of correction.

Representative Gara informed the comittee that t he
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District and the Anchorage
School District taught U S Hstory and included the US

Constitution, the Bill of R ghts, and the Declaration of
| ndependence as part of the course curriculum He was
unable to find any district in the state that did not
include these itens. He asked Conm ssioner Hanley if knew
of any district that did not include them

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Keller conveyed that he did not believe
there was enough understanding of the historical issues
brought forth in his bill. He admtted that his view was
subj ective based on his children's educational experience
and his own.

2:11:39 PM

Representative Gara reiterated that Al aska's Content
Standards already required the teaching of the US.
Constitution, the Declaration of Independence, and the Bil
of Rights. Conm ssioner Hanley had comented that there
were different foundational docunents specified in the bill
on page 2, paragraph 4 [line 5-10]. He wanted to know if
Comm ssioner Hanley was referring to the first 15 years-
worth of docunments.

M. Hanl ey responded affirnatively.

Representative Gara expressed sone concern. Currently the
state was required to teach the full U'S Constitution, the
Bill of Rights, and the Declaration of I|ndependence. He
cited that paragraph 4 on page 2 tal ked about the special
i nportance of the first 15 years of docunents. Events such
as a woman's right to vote, the right to vote regardl ess of
race, the abolishnent of slavery, and the adoption of the
equal protection clause all occurred following the first 15
years of U 'S, history. He expressed concerned with the
|atter itenms  were of | ess i mport ance. He wanted
clarification about the enphasis in HB 30 placed on the
foundati onal docunents versus the enphasis in the current
st andar ds.

Representative Keller responded that, in his view, many of
the things that have gone right in the U'S. including the
ending of slavery, the increase of wonen's rights, and the
increase in human rights were products of the "ism' portion
enshrined within the first 15-year period of U S. history.
He believed the history that Representative Gara nentioned
was in large part based on the values evident in the early
docunents. He added that the list of the docunents was not
excl usive. He suggested that the bill enphasized the val ues
of the time period which made Anmerica great. He opined that
t he docunments were instrunmental in changing and enhancing
human rights. He suggested that a student who was trying to
determ ne whether sonething was a violation of human rights

House Fi nance Committee 14 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



would be at an advantage knowing the basis of Anmerican
val ues and their origins.

Representative Gara comented that the parts of the
constitution that cane after the first 15 years including
the abolishnment of slavery, a woman's right to vote, and
the right for all races to vote, were equally inportant. He
wondered if they would continue to be taught in the
cl assroom He asked Comm ssioner M. Hanley how the bill
was different from the current mandated curriculum He
wanted clarification about the difference Conm ssioner
Hanl ey had referred to earlier in the neeting.

Representative Keller clarified that the bill in no way
restricted the history curriculum He stressed that HB 30
was an enphasis bill on American constitutionalism
Representative Gara wondered how the bill was different
from the requirenents outlined in the established
st andards.

M. Hanley stated that the bill was duplicative for sone

school districts. He relayed that sone districts that were
not specifically addressing docunents such as the
Federali st Papers mght have to make sone adjustnents to
their curriculumw th the passing of HB 30.

2:16: 52 PM

Representative Kawasaki asked if there were any districts
not teaching the curriculum He nentioned that he |earned
how a bill becane a law in the second grade through a
School House Rock vi deo.

M. Hanley relayed that he was not aware of any school
districts that were not already teaching Al aska's content
st andar ds.

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to Section 2 of the bill
which required secondary schools to teach a defined
curriculum He then nmade reference to Section 3b which said
that a district could not issue a diploma to a student that
did not successfully conplete the course. He provided a
hypot hetical scenario in which a student falls asleep
during a governnent cl ass. He wondered under such
circunstances if the student would remain eligible to
recei ve a dipl oma

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Keller responded in the negative. He
suggested that the bill required the admnistrator of
schools to provide the course description in a syllabus.
The idea was to ensure that the student knew the curricul um
through testing. He returned to the question about the bill
being duplicitous. He pointed out that the state standards
were not state law. He wanted to place higher enphasis on
the curriculum even if the bill was crafted to match the
Al aska State Standards verbatim He wanted the curriculum
pl aced in statute.

Representative Kawasaki asked if there were any statutory
requi renents dictating students to take a certain nunber of
mat h or English classes.

M. Hanley highlighted Al aska Studies as the only course
requi renent defined by either |law or regulation.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered if the rest of the courses
were part of Alaska's regul ations.

M. Hanley responded that the Alaska State Standards were
adopted by reference into regul ation.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked the bill sponsor about the
first couple of legislative findings and the use of the
word values. He asked if Representative Keller thought it
was the responsibility of state schools to teach val ues.

Representative Keller responded affirmatively in regards to
constitutionalism values. He suggested that the val ues were
the foundation of the United States, the basis for the
country's liberty, and the reason for so nmany people going
to war to defend the country. He pointed out that the
values he was referring to were not ones he was defining,

but were ones captured in the word "isnl specifically
related to the early state constitutions, the Declaration
of | ndependence, the Articles of Conf eder at i on, t he
declaration articles, and the Bill of Rights. He believed

the state was in danger of taking the information for
gr ant ed.

2:21: 22 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson nentioned that there was a question about
whet her there were any school districts that did not teach

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



the U S Constitution. He read froma letter fromthe Al aska
Muni ci pal League (AM.):

While the concept of teaching our young people the
basics of our US Constitution is a |audatory goal,
it seens that this is not the tine to put one nore
unfunded mandate in front of all of Alaska s school
districts. On introduction of the bill, you nentioned
that nost schools are already doing this, so you
visualize very little cost involved. Wile Anchorage
may be doing this, | am fairly certain that this is
not necessarily being done in Craig, D llingham
Gal ena, Hoonah, Hydaburg, Kake, King Cove, Kl awock,
Pelican, Saint Mary's, Seldovia, and Tanana (all First
Class «cities responsible for their own school
district).

He conveyed that AM. expressed concern and disfavor about
instituting an unfunded mandate for new curriculum for the
above |isted school s.

Representative WIson asked Conm ssioner Hanley if there
would be a problem incorporating the proposed curriculum
into the Al aska Content Standards.

M. Hanley offered that he could take the request to the
state board for consideration. He outlined the process; the
board reviewed the current state standards, evaluated how
the additional curriculum would be folded into the
standards, allowed for a period of public comment, and
submtted a proposal for adoption. He nentioned the value
of having changes placed into statute as well.

Representative WIson was concerned that sone schools in
Al aska were not teaching the Al aska Content standards. She
relayed that she had spoken previously to sone of the
schools in her district and did not find any that were not
teaching the curriculum She asked the bill sponsor,
referring to page 2, about the |anguage used, specifically
the word ensure. She wondered how a school would ensure a
student's understanding of American constitutionalism She
provided a personal illustration; she explained that in
eighth grade a student had to know elenents of the state's
history. A student had to be able to identify the state
conptroller and the governor. She relayed that in high
school she had to know simlar information proven in an
exam She wanted to know how to neasure a student's

House Fi nance Committee 17 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



know edge. She also pressed for the definition of
"successful”™ in terms of a grade.

Representative Keller explained that the reference to
ensuring a student's know edge was neant to describe the
syl labus. He furthered that a syllabus was a description of

a course that defined content, hours, and perhaps a
cl assroom discussion to neasure success rather than a
grade. He referred to page 2, line 26 that provided the

standard; successfully conpleting the course. He stated
that it was conceivable that the syllabus mght not be
based on testing but rather on attendance and class
participation. He trusted the teachers to ensure that
students |earned the curriculum He believed that there was
a sincere effort by the teachers and the admnistrators
within Alaska to provide students with the information. He
added that there was no standard test to neasure a
student's know edge of the curriculum He elaborated that
the syllabus defined what information the teachers needed
to present to students. He added that it was part of the
j ob of a teacher.

2:26:36 PM

Representative WIson asked who determned the conpletion
of a course. She asked if there would be an indicator on a
transcri pt. She al so wondered how and where a teacher would
report that a student conpleted a course.

Representative Keller replied that the intent of the bill
was not to mcromanage. He furthered that successful
conpl eti on would be when a child successfully conpleted the
course in which the curriculum segnment was enbedded. He
remarked that it was a sinple mandate instructing a schoo
district to get the job done.

Representative WIson suggested that her point was that if
a child were to change districts, one school board m ght
have a different interpretation than another. She opined
that the curriculum was not clearly defined. She did not
want a student to have to retake a segnent.

Representative Gattis thanked the sponsor for bringing the
bill forward and instigating the conversation. She asked if
there were any changes from the old and new standards in
regards to the bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



M. Hanley responded that the social studies standards
remai ned unchanged. He reported that the English, Language
Arts, and math standards had been altered. He nentioned
that in Alaska's English and Language Arts section,
previously referred to as reading and witing, specific
docunents were identified such as the preanble to the
Decl arati on of | ndependence and ot her f oundat i onal
docunents.

Representative CGattis asked about how to determine if the
standards were currently being taught statew de. She stated
that a bill could be crafted to ensure that the standards
were being taught. She noted that the bill sponsor
mentioned trusting the teachers to do their job. She
wondered how the Commi ssioner knew whether teachers were
teaching the state's standards.

M. Hanley conmented that the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opment (DEED) did not m cromanage teachers. He
was di sappointed and concerned to hear that districts had
voluntarily said that they were not teaching Al aska Content
Standards. He relayed that the departnent did not review
each district's curriculumto see if they were teaching to

the standards. |Instead, reading, witing, and math were
assessed. The state did not have a separate assessnment for
soci al st udi es, nor was he pronoti ng one. The

responsi bility belonged to |ocal school districts.

Representative Gattis conmented, "There lies the bigger
problem "™ She better understood the bill sponsor's concern.
She relayed that she had been on the Mt-Su school board
and had experience in dealing with civics classes. She
noted that districts were able to choose what part of the
standards to focus on. She opined that the state was not
doing what it had done 30 to 40 years prior. She wanted to
know who was responsi ble for ensuring that the schools were
teaching what the state paid in significant funding to
teach in Al aska's school s.

M. Hanley answered that the responsibility laid in the
hands of the Ilocal school boards. He comunicated that
school boards adopted their district's school curriculumto
be aligned with the state's standards. He shared that when
the departnment found that districts were not in conpliance
or not followng through with their responsibilities the
departnment then followed through. He added that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



department did not have the staff to review each district's
curriculumto ensure alignnent.

Representative Gattis thanked Commi ssi oner Hanl ey.

2:32: 33 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er comented that he did not see any intent
in the language of the bill or in the sponsor's words,
referring to page 2, lines 5 through 10, that slighted the
changes nmade over time to the U S. Constitution. Nor did he
note any desire to limt the scope of the curriculum
segnent to just the first 15 vyears of the US.
Constitution. He relayed that it sinply said that the U S
Constitution was one of several foundational docunents
witten over 15 years that should be the subject of
consideration. He asked if the bill required each school
district to develop its own curriculum segnent, or if it
was possible for school districts that currently offered
appropriate segnents to share themwth other districts for
adopti on.

Representative Keller reassured the conmttee that it was
not his intent for every school district to design a unique
curriculum segnent. He suggested that one of the advantages
of the bill was that the smaller districts could borrow
curriculum from other districts. He highlighted that in his
district a class called in with enthusiasm regardi ng HB 30.
The teacher of the class had already devel oped a curricul um
segnment. He knew the teacher personally and was certain the
curriculum could be nmade available to any district upon
request. He shared that he had witten curriculum in the
past and that it was a significant job. He surm sed that
wi th know edge of the subject it mght take a teacher a day
or two to design the specific curriculum segment required
inthe bill.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er suggested that while the bill created an
unfunded mandate it would not necessarily be an expensive
mandate for nmany of the school districts in Al aska. There
were districts that already had such curriculum segnments in
place. He thought it wuld be cost-effective for al
districts in Alaska to adopt a curriculum currently being
t aught .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Kawasaki asked if the sponsor's definition
of the word constitutionalism was the neaning witten by
Davi d Fel | man.

Representative Keller replied that the content of the bill
was the closest to the definition of constitutionalism He
referred to page 2, line 20 which read Anmerican
Constitutionalism "as portrayed" in the docunents |isted.
He explained the reason he used the term was because of an
i nspirational t ext book titled, " Ameri can
Constitutionalism A Shot Heard Around the Wrld." The
author called attention to nations around the Atlantic rim
being inpacted by observing what happened in Anerica,
trying to duplicate it in their own country, and
experiencing varying levels of success. The author traced
Anerica's history. The sponsor confirned that he was
intrigued with the book and felt the term was easy to
under st and.

2:36: 42 PM

Representative Kawasaki did not feel +that the term
constitutionalism was easy for him to wunderstand. He
suggested that Representative Keller had just used the word
itself to define constitutionalism He speculated that if
the sponsor was using the definition by David Fellnen it
woul d be easier to understand.

Representati ve Kel | er asked about t he documnent
Represent ati ve Kawasaki referenced.

Representati ve Kawasaki responded that it was a docunent
that was submitted by the bill sponsor. He indicated that
the docunent titled "Constitutionalisn quoted David
Fel | man, a constitutional scholar. The document was part of
the bill packet.

Representative Keller stated that it was included in order
to provide context and an additional reference.

Representati ve Kawasaki read from David Fel | man' s
definition of constitutionalism

"What ever particular form of government a constitution
del i neates, however, it serves as the keystone of the
arch of constitutionalism except in those countries
whose witten constitutions are nmere sham"”

House Fi nance Committee 21 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Represent ati ve Kawasaki conti nued readi ng:

"This is by no neans a nodern idea, for the concept of
a higher law which spells out the basic nornms of a
political society is as old as Western civilization."

Representative Kawasaki wondered if the state was only
teachi ng constitutionalismunder Western civilization.

Representative Keller responded affirmatively. He added
that the point was that American constitutionalism had a
huge inpact on the world. He enphasized that children went
to war to defend the U S. Constitution. He observed that
there was nothing in the bill that said the teacher or the
school district should brainwash their children to think
just like Western Anmerica. He believed that a student had
the right to have a better understanding of the country's
history and the principles that were in place when the U S
Constitution was witten. He felt that it was a weak
argunment to suggest that kids should not know their
history. He relayed that it was Western in the sense that
Anerica was Western.

Representati ve Kawasaki el aborated that the author went on
to say that it was the concept of a limted governnment. He

proposed that the |ine of thinking was the opposite of
current thought. He highlighted the irony of hearing and
al nrost passing a bill on the previous day that he thought

was entirely unconstitutional.

2:39:36 PM

Co- Chair Neuman asked M. Hanley if DEED would have to hire
additional positions to enforce the curriculum M. Hanley
clarified the difference between standards and curricul um
He voiced that standards were sinply expectations such as
reading, witing, math, and content standards for social
studies that had not been updated recently. He believed
that the requirenent fit well into the state's current
content standards which did not need updating. Districts
would continue to be responsible for determning how to
neet the standards with their own curricul um choi ces.

Co-Chair Neuman referred to page 2, Section 3b, |ines 25-
27. He read the portion of the bill:

House Fi nance Committee 22 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



A district may not issue a secondary school diploma to
a student who does not successfully conplete the
course in which the curriculum segnent described in
(a) of this section is contained.

He spoke about Ilegislation from the previous year that
allowed DEED to retroactively issue diploms to students
that had not passed the high school graduation qualifying
exam (HSQED). He asked how students would receive their
di pl ona. He was uncl ear.

M. Hanley explained that in the previous year |egislation
removed the HSQED, a barrier assessnent. He noted that if
students had nmet all other «criteria including their
curricular course requirenents to graduate and the HSQED
was the only thing stopping them they could request to
receive their diploma. They were required to neet all other
course requirenments. It did not allow school districts to
remove courses, it only allowed them to use the assessnent
as the barrier to a student's diploma. He anticipated that

if the bill passed it would be a required social studies
course for graduation. Regulations would likely be added to
clarify that the conponents proposed in the bill would need

to be included into another social studies course required
for graduation.

2:43:15 PM

Co-Chair Neuman discussed being a honme school dad. He
reported being a part of the Galena Home School Program

the largest school in the state with over 3800 students
enroll ed. He added that he thought there were nore than 10
t housand hone school kids in the state. He described his
feeling standing next to the Lincoln Menorial in Washington
D.C. as energizing. He was able to choose the best

curriculum for his children as a home school parent. The
| deal program required parents to make a selection. He was
not sure he could have taught his children the curricul um
that was required in the bill. He asked how a parent would
be expected to handle a simlar situation.

M. Hanley replied that the responsibility would Ilikely

fall on the commssioner. It would becone one of the
required curriculum segnents listed in the bill. He
furthered that no matter what curriculum a parent chose as
a parent. Upon the passage of the bill certain conponents

woul d be required as part of a course. A parent would have

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



to confirmthe conpletion of the segnment in order for their
children to receive their diplonas.

2:47:21 PM

Co-Chair Neuman asked if there were any other required
curriculums in math, English, reading and witing that were
required for honmeschool parents.

M. Hanley responded that the only course that he had
referenced earlier was the Al aska Studies Course which was
requi red as one of the social studies credits.

Co- Chai r Neuman asked if there were any required
curriculums for math or English. Conm ssioner Hanley
responded in the negative.

Co- Chair Neuman conveyed that he had fought hard to nmake
sure that there were hone school opportunities. He was

aware that the sponsor of the bill supported the hone
school nodel. He wondered how the requirenent outlined in
the bill would affect honme school prograns. He expressed

his <concern in mandating parents to teach a certain
curriculum He relayed his own experience in which he was
able to choose his own curriculumfor his children.

Representative Keller responded that the mandate of the
bill would apply to the honme school student receiving state
funds. He opined that it was a soft nmandate that deserved
to be placed at a significant |evel of inportance, at |east
in regards to Al askan hi st ory. He was certain
Representative Neuman had taught his children the val ues
that would be included in the proposed nmandate. If a parent
refused to teach the proposed curriculum while taking state
funds, certain repercussions wuld have to be determ ned

He relayed that his grandchildren participated in a hone
school program and confirmed that there were requirenments
that were inposed when taking state funds. The mandate of
the bill would be one of the requirenents.

Vice-Chair Saddler read the definition of constitutionalism
from Wbster's New Wrld Dictionary, Second Col |l ege
Editi on:

Constitutionalism 1is governnent according to a

constitution or adherence to constitutional principles
or governnent.

House Fi nance Committee 24 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked Representative Keller if he agreed
that it was a fair definition of constitutionalism

Representative Keller responded, "Far be it from ne,
Representative Saddler, through the chair, to argue wth
Webster. ™

2:50: 26 PM

Representative Gara wondered about the nmeaning of the term
constitutionalism He agreed with Representative Saddler
that a definition referenced in the bill would be hel pful
He suggested that in looking at the literature there were
radically left-wing versions and profoundly right-w ng
versions of the nmeaning of constitutionalism He referenced
a law review article fromthe University of Louisville that
presented a very narrow version of the nmeaning of
constitutionalism and cited the case, Brown vs. Board of
Education. The case had to do with whether there could be
white-only schools. He wanted to nmke sure that children
would have the right to have a free debate about the
nmeaning of the terms of the constitution. In other words
he did not want any particular philosophy inposed on
children when interpreting the word constitutionalism

Representative Keller referred to HB 30, page 2, line 20.
He pointed to the words "as portrayed." He suggested that
it wuld be wunlikely to mnmsinterpret the neaning of
constitutionalism in studying the docunments listed in the
bill. He added that indisputable values would be found in
studying things |ike inalienable rights or the bal ance of
powers necessary to make a republic work. He argued that
the curriculum was not exclusive and felt that every
student should know it. He elaborated that he felt that as
long as constitutionalism was portrayed in the sane |ight
as the docunments in the legislation it was fair ganme for
the requirenments of the bill.

Representative Gara asked if Representative Keller was okay
with including a definition of constitutionalismsimlar to
that found in Webster's Dictionary.

Representative Keller was anenable. He indicated the
definition found in Wbster's Dictionary was consistent
with his intent in the bill and thought it was good to have
on record.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



2:53:59 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson thanked the testifiers for their tine.

Representative Keller thanked the commttee and urged the
passing of HB 30. He thought that the bill inposed a
worthwhile nmandate. He voiced that the issue was very
inportant and was the reason he brought it before the
commttee in the formof |egislation.

Co-Chair Thonpson relayed that there had been many
guestions about the bill and that he would hold the bill in
commttee for additional hearings.

HB 30 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

He di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

2:55:18 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:55 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 03/17/15 1:32 P. M



